
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, February 15, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 

See Zoom Meeting Info on Page 2 
AMENDED 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m.  
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on issues not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not already on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Minutes:  January 25th, February 1st, February 8th  
5. Public Hearing:  Solid Waste Rate Increase Request from Waste Connections, Zone 1; 

Order No. OR-2023-2 (Sandi Pointer, Public Works) 
6. Business Items  

a. Board to Deliberate and Appoint Candidate to Commissioner Position 1 
b. Discuss Potential Broadband Intergovernmental Agreement for Creation of the 

Morrow County Broadband Action Team Public Improvement Consortium 
(Aaron Moss, Broadband Action Team) 

c. Discuss Potential Change in Deployment Plan for Office/Microsoft 365 (Kevin 
Ince, Finance Director; Jordan Standley, IT Director)  

d. Appointment Request, Budget Committee (Kevin Ince) 
e. Appointment Request, Morrow County Public Transit Advisory Committee 

(Benjamin Tucker, The Loop) 
f. Recommendations to forward to Budget Committee regarding position 

reclassifications & new employee requests (Lindsay Grogan, Human Resources 
Director) 

7. Department Reports 
a. Weed Department Quarterly Report (Corey Sweeney) 

8. Correspondence 
9. Commissioner Reports 
10. Signing of documents 
11. Adjourn 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the 
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about 
items listed on the agenda, please contact Chair David Sykes, 541-256-0379. 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546  Password:  97836  Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only Using Meeting ID 541-676-2546#: 

• 1-346-248-7799 
• 1-669-900-6833  
• 1-312-626-6799 
• 1-929-436-2866 

 
Zoom Specific Notes: 

• The chat function of Zoom is generally not reviewed by the Board of Commissioners or 
Staff during the meeting.   

• If joining by a browser, use the raise hand icon to indicate you would like to provide 
public comment, if and when allowed.  If using a phone, press *9 to indicate you would 
like to speak and *6 to unmute when you are called on. 

• Morrow County provides the option for Zoom Translated Captions.  
o Instructions:    https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/6643133682957-

Enabling-and-configuring-translated-captions 
o If you need further assistance, please contact Justin Nelson at 

jnelson@co.morrow.or.us 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/6643133682957-Enabling-and-configuring-translated-captions
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/6643133682957-Enabling-and-configuring-translated-captions


 

Board Minutes, January 25, 2023                                                                             Page 1 of 3 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 
January 25, 2023 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present In-Person 
Chair David Sykes, Commissioner Jeff Wenholz, Roberta Lutcher, Jaylene Papineau, Kevin 
Ince, Andy Huwe, Karen Wolff, Justin Nelson, Robin Canaday, Bobbi Childers 
Present Via Zoom 
Paul Gray, Lindsay Grogan, Deona Siex, Lisa Pratt, Mike Gorman, Karen Pettigrew, Erika 
Lasater, SaBrina Bailey-Cave, Kaleb Lay, Kelsey Crocker, Heidi Turrell, Christy Kenny, Tamra 
Mabbott, Rafael Romero, Linda Skendzel, Ana Maria Rodriguez, Debbie Radie, Aaron Moss, 
Jim Doherty, Ana Pineyro, Kelly Doherty, Yvonne Morter, Raymond Akers, Lisa Mittelsdorf, 
Jonathan Tallman, Bill Saporito, B. Delgado, Brenda Profitt, D. Orid, Angie Burke 
Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Introductions:  9:00 a.m. 
 
Chair Sykes thanked County Counsel, Justin Nelson, for adding the feature to Zoom that allowed 
for foreign language transcription.   
 
Mr. Nelson said he tested it yesterday with representatives from Oregon Rural Action and the 
Public Health Department and it worked pretty well.  He then explained to those online how to 
enable the transcription option within Zoom.  Mr. Nelson said the notation on the Board’s 
agendas about requesting interpreters applied to those with hearing or visual disabilities.   
 
Chair Sykes asked participants to email their impressions about the service following the 
meeting.   
 
City & Citizen Comments 
Veterans Services Officer, Linda Skendzel, informed the Commissioners about a funding 
opportunity through the Oregon Department of Veterans Affairs related to suicide awareness.  
She said the funds needed to be used before the end of the fiscal year and she was in contact with 
partners at Community Counseling Solutions to work toward that end. 
 
Open Agenda – No items 
 
Consent Calendar 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar: 

1. Minutes:  December 28, 2022, January 4, 2023, January 11, 2023 
2. Property Tax Refund, Meenderinck Land Company LLC, $4,482.45 

Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Business Items 
Letter of Support, Grant Application to the Oregon Department of Transportation, Community 
Paths Program 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
 



 

Board Minutes, January 25, 2023                                                                             Page 2 of 3 
 

Commissioner Wenholz moved to sign the letter of support, as presented by Ms. Mabbott in the 
Agenda Packet.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Transition from Emergency Phase to Recovery Phase of the Nitrate Emergency; Change of 
Command 
Robin Canaday, Public Health Director 
Ms. Canaday said the County moved out of the emergency phase and into the recovery phase, 
therefore, her department would take over.  She said Public Health was collaborating with 
various agencies.  The Oregon Health Authority (OHA) will take over funding for well testing, 
filtration systems and research and data gathering using a voucher system.  There have been 
“kinks” in implementing the voucher system, said Ms. Canaday.  The Oregon Department of 
Human Services will do water delivery for folks who qualify.  She said she was assured the 
funding will continue through June and then there will be more information to come after that.   
 
Ms. Canaday then spoke about the application process for the $1.7 million congressionally 
directed spending; the new position that will be funded by OHA for outreach and education; the 
joint work with Umatilla County and other agencies; and then and asked for a Commissioner to 
be involved with these efforts.    
 
Since the nitrate issue will be an ongoing effort for quite some time, Ms. Canaday said she was 
working with the Planning Department on long-term planning.   
 
After Chair Sykes confirmed Ms. Canaday had reviewed the application for the $1.7 million, he 
then asked if it specified how money would be spent.  She said she would share the application 
process with him on another date.  He said that will determine the direction for the study or 
process, which was designed to guide further mitigation of the nitrate issue in both counties so 
the application might be important for input on how funds will be spent.  He agreed with her 
request that a Commissioner representative would be important, and Commissioner Wenholz 
offered to act in that capacity. 
 
Interim County Administrator Position 
Three applications were received.  The Commissioners received input from Human Resources 
Director, Lindsay Grogan, on the typical review process by her office, as well as from Mr. 
Nelson, who confirmed the ability to conduct interviews in executive session.  The 
Commissioners asked Ms. Grogan to move forward with the process. 
 
Permanent County Administrator Position  
Commissioner Wenholz discussed the three proposals he obtained from executive search firms.   
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to engage Prothman to do the executive search for the County 
Administrator position.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Discussion:  Commissioner Wenholz said the 
anticipated costs were $17,500, plus another $5,000 for other expenses.  Finance Director, 
Kevin Ince, said as an intermediate procurement, some additional steps needed to take place and 
Commissioner Wenholz had gone through those steps.  He said funds existed through the 
General Fund or the Board of Commissioners budget.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 



 

Board Minutes, January 25, 2023                                                                             Page 3 of 3 
 

Department Reports 
• Clerk, Bobbi Childers, provided a verbal quarterly report 
• Assistant Road Master, Mike Haugen, reviewed the Road Department Monthly Report 
• Ms. Grogan provided a verbal quarterly report 
• The written Surveyor’s Quarterly Report was reviewed, as submitted by Matt Kenny, 

Contracted Surveyor 
• Ms. Canaday reviewed the Public Health Quarterly Report 

 
Correspondence:  None 
 
Commissioner Reports 
The Commissioners provided brief reports of activity. 
 
Signing of Documents 
 
Chair Sykes said the Board would meet in Executive Session at 11:30 a.m. and he did not 
anticipate returning to the regular meeting as a decision was not anticipated. 
 
11:30 a.m.:  Executive Session:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) – To consult with counsel 
concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or 
litigation likely to be filed 
 
12:15 p.m.:  Closed Executive Session:  No decisions 
 
Adjourned:  12:16 p.m. 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Minutes, February 1, 2023                                                                               Page 1 of 4 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 
February 1, 2023 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present In-Person 
Chair David Sykes, Commissioner Jeff Wenholz, Roberta Lutcher, Mike Haugen, Justin Nelson, 
Jerry Rietmann, Tamra Mabbott, Kevin Ince, Lindsay Grogan, Sandi Pointer 
Present Via Zoom 
Erick Peterson, Raymond Akers, Kaleb Lay, Julie Baker, Susan Bower, SaBrina Bailey-Cave, 
John Bailey, Ana Maria Rodriguez, Sarah DeForest, Erika Lasater, Mike Gorman, Patrick 
Collins, Karen Wolff, Ramzi Sulieman, Cody High, Ana Pineyro, Heidi Turrell, Kelsey Crocker, 
Lisa Mittelsdorf, D. Orid, Melissa Camarillo 
Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Introductions:  9:00 a.m. 
City & Citizen Comments 
Ana Maria Rodriguez, Community Organizer with Oregon Rural Action, and Kelly Doherty, 
Boardman resident, posed questions and comments to the Board in Spanish and then in English.  
They were:  What are the next steps for hearing and reading translations?  Will the County 
provide translated agendas and packets ahead of time?  Will Zoom recordings be posted in the 
future?  Can the closed caption box be enlarged?   
 
Justin Nelson, County Counsel, went through the settings in Zoom to help with the font size in 
the closed caption box.  He offered to work with Oregon Rural Action again and test the options 
outside the public meeting time.   
 
Chair Sykes said the Board would take the comments under consideration. 
 
Mike Brandt, part of the group Zooming in from the Boardman location organized by Oregon 
Rural Action, asked if the County had signed a contract yet with the Oregon Health Authority for 
well testing and water delivery.   
 
Chair Sykes said Public Health Director, Robin Canaday, would be able to answer that but she 
was not in attendance.  He added he met with the Governor’s representative yesterday and talked 
at length about water issues.  Chair Sykes said the state was on board, things were moving along 
and there were no issues there.  It’s going to keep continuing but he said he did not have any 
contract details.   
 
Ethan Akers asked what funds were still available for water delivery and support.  Chair Sykes 
said he believed this was addressed at the last meeting by Paul Gray, Emergency Manager.   
 
Finance Director, Kevin Ince, responded by saying the budget adopted at the end of June for the 
current fiscal year did not have a specific, identifiable line item for water emergency.  This 
question came up in the past and his Department went through the draft Budget Committee 
Meeting minutes.  At the beginning of the fiscal year, he said, an appropriation was made for 
$100,000 toward the Emergency Management Department for the water emergency and 
subsequent to that, another $60,000 was approved.  Mr. Ince said he believed a report on this was 



 

Board Minutes, February 1, 2023                                                                               Page 2 of 4 
 

provided recently on the status of those funds.  With the transition to the recovery phase and the 
transfer of responsibilities to the Public Health Department, Mr. Ince said he met with Ms. 
Canaday and determined there were adequate appropriations within the Health Department’s 
current budget to continue with water delivery activities.   
 
Miscellaneous 
Chair Sykes announced there would be a Work Session today at 1:30 p.m. to hear updates on the 
retirement plan.  He also said there would be a 9:00 a.m. Special Meeting on February 2nd to go 
into executive session to consider the employment of a public officer, employee, staff member or 
individual agent.  The meeting will resume at 1:30 p.m. for a possible decision, he added. 
 
City & Citizen Comments, continued      
Raymond Akers asked about last week’s report from Clerk, Bobbi Childers.  He mentioned a 
public information request but was unable to provide exact details.  Chair Sykes said there was a 
procedure for public document requests and the Clerk said she followed those procedures.  He 
said Mr. Akers could check if he felt he was not getting documents.        
 
Open Agenda:  No items 
 
Consent Calendar 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar: 

1. Review of the Executed Contract with Prothman for County Administrator Recruitment.  
Fee for conducting a full recruitment with a one-year guarantee - $17,500.  Morrow 
County will be responsible for reimbursing expenses Prothman incurs for each 
recruitment. 

2. Minutes:  January 18th 
Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Business Items 
Food Pod Replat & Lot 6 Replat in the City of Irrigon from Ron McKinnis 
Mike Gorman, Assessor/Tax Collector 
Chair Sykes commented this appeared to be a straightforward request for the BOC to sign the 
plats. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve and sign the Food Pod Replat and Lot 6 Replat in the 
City of Irrigon.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Comment Letter to the Energy Facility Siting Council (EFSC) on the Boardman to Hemingway 
Project, Request for Amendment 1, and Update 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
Ms. Mabbott noted Sarah Esterson with EFSC would not be speaking today and apologized if 
there was a miscommunication.  She explained EFSC approved the B2H project last fall and 
there were already some amendments filed.  The letter was “routine” in response to Idaho 
Power’s Request for Amendment 1.  The nature of the amendment was primarily changing the 
haul routes that worked better for Idaho Power and the landowners, and one had a reroute of the 
transmission line, she said.  Discussion. 



 

Board Minutes, February 1, 2023                                                                               Page 3 of 4 
 

Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve and sign the letter.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  
Unanimous approval. 
 
Road Committee Appointment Request 
Sandi Pointer, Public Works 
Ms. Pointer said she received an application from Boardman resident, Gabe Hansen.  She said 
she believed his accounting background would be of benefit to the committee. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to accept Gabe Hansen to the Road Committee as Alternate 
representing North County; term to be February 1, 2023 to February 1, 2026.  Vote:  
Unanimous approval. 
 
Purchase Request – Asphalt Paver & Attachments 
Mike Haugen, Public Works 
After reviewing the reasons for the purchase, Mr. Haugen said the Road Equipment Reserve 
budget supported the purchase.  He talked about future plans for a pugmill to produce asphalt at 
local pits and the asset that will be for fixing roads.    
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve the purchase request for a 2023 CAT AP-555F 
Asphalt Paver and attachments in the amount of $487,810.54, allowing Public Works to 
purchase the paver after the intent to award has been published and protests received after the 
required period of time.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Permit Application #OTR to Build in Right-of-Way, Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
Mike Haugen, Public Works 
Commissioner Wenholz declared he was on the Board of Directors of Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative (UEC) and it would be considered a business with which he was associated.  Under 
his interpretation, he said he didn’t have a conflict but there was apparently a complaint with the 
Oregon Government Ethics Commission.  Since they haven’t issued a ruling, Commissioner 
Wenholz asked County Counsel, Justin Nelson, the following:  If he had a conflicted interest, he 
couldn’t participate in the discussion.  Without his vote, there wouldn’t be a quorum, so he asked 
if he was then able to vote. 
 
Mr. Nelson said he hadn’t had a chance to look at this and suggested they go forward while he 
looked into the matter. 
 
Mr. Haugen said UEC was putting in a substation in Irrigon to feed the City of Irrigon and 
they’re starting the first phase of putting in the power lines and replacing and installing new 
wires.  He provided additional details.  Discussion took place on how Public Works monitored 
for progress and compliance by permitees. 
 
Mr. Nelson discussed Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 224.120(2)(b)(B):  
 (2) An elected public official, other than a member of the Legislative Assembly, or an 
  appointed public official serving on a board or commission, shall: 
  (b) When met with an actual conflict of interest, announce publicly the nature  
   of the actual conflict and: 



 

Board Minutes, February 1, 2023                                                                               Page 4 of 4 
 

   (B) If any public official’s vote is necessary to meet a requirement of a 
    minimum number of votes to take official action, be eligible to  
    vote, but not to participate as a public official in any discussion or  
    debate on the issue out of which the actual conflict arises. 
 
He said Chair Sykes could make the motion and Commissioner Wenholz could second it and 
vote. 
 
Chair Sykes moved to approve Permit Application #OTR from UEC.  Commissioner Wenholz 
seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Permit Application #OTQ to Build in Right-of-Way, LS Networks, Inc. 
Mike Haugen 
Mr. Haugen said LS Networks needed to fix communication wire on Tower Road because there 
have been issues with farming equipment bringing it down.  Mr. Haugen provided additional 
details and noted the minimum height listed on the application would be changed from 36’ to 
38’. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve Permit Application #OTQ from LS Networks, Inc.  
Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Process After Closing Date for Commissioner Position 1 
The Commissioners decided three of the six applicants would be asked to provide a presentation 
February 8th and the Board would make a decision February 15th.   
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to invite Gus Peterson, Roy Drago Jr. and Mike McNamee to the 
February 5th Board of Commissioners Meeting to provide a five-minute presentation on their 
qualifications and why they want the position, and for a brief question and answer session from 
the Commissioners.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Department Reports 

• The Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report was provided by Administrative Lieutenant Melissa 
Camarillo 

• The Assessment & Tax Quarterly Report was provided by Mr. Gorman 
• The Accounts Payable Report was provided by Mr. Ince 

 
Correspondence 

• Letter from Margaret Hoffman, State Director, Rural Development, U.S.D.A. offering an 
opportunity for the County to submit comment regarding True Organic Products, Inc.’s 
grant application.  After discussion, Ms. Mabbott was asked to provide a draft letter for 
next week’s meeting stating the County was generally in favor of the application but to 
also note the necessary land use permits for expansion had not been filed with the 
Planning Department. 

Commissioner Reports:  Brief reports were provided 
Signing of Documents 
Adjourned:  10:15 a.m.  



 

Board Minutes, February 8, 2023                                                                                    Page 1 of 5 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2023 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present In-Person 
Chair David Sykes, Commissioner Jeff Wenholz, Roberta Lutcher, Sandi Pointer, Corey 
Sweeney, Ben Tucker, Gus Peterson, Mike McNamee, Roy Drago Jr., John Bowles, Brian 
Snyder, Gina Wilson, Tamra Mabbott, Chris Brown, Mark Browning, Jordan Standley, Justin 
Nelson, Mike Gorman, Greg Close, Robin Canaday, Aymie Haslam  
Present Via Zoom 
Kelsey Crocker, Karen Pettigrew, Paul Gray, D. Orid, Erika Lasater, Stephen Wrecsics, SaBrina 
Bailey-Cave, Brandi Sweeney, Rick Stokoe, Alexandra Hobbs, Linda Skendzel, Christy Kenny, 
Ray Akers, Eric Kodesch, Lisa Mittelsdorf, Ethan Salata, Deona Siex, Bill Saporito, Shelby 
Gartside, Glen Diehl, Katie Imes, Kandy Boyd, Debbie Radie, Yvonne Morter, Jennifer Jenck, 
Kirsti Cason, David Lawlor, Jasmine Garcia 
Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Introductions:  9:00 a.m. 
City & Citizen Comments:  None 
Open Agenda:  No items 
Consent Calendar 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar: 

1. Minutes:  November 9, 2022 
2. Beneficiary Agreement – Willow Creek Terrace Assisted Living to receive a one-time 

disbursement of $150,000 in American Rescue Plan Act/Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds to mitigate financial hardships due to the COVID-19 pandemic 

Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Public Hearing:  Planning & Zoning Map Amendment to Add a New Rock Quarry to the Goal 
5 Inventory; Applicant:  Morrow County Public Works 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
Eric Imes, Public Works Director 
Chair Sykes opened the Public Hearing at 9:04 a.m., called for potential conflicts of interest, and 
described how to offer testimony. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz said, for the record, he was on the Planning Commission when it was 
recommended this be advanced to the Board of Commissioners.  Ms. Mabbott said she checked 
with land use counsel and he did not see any conflict.   
 
Chair Sykes called for the Staff Report, which was provided by Ms. Mabbott.  She also said 
today was considered as the first reading, with the second reading to take place March 15th, wtih 
an effective date of June 15th.  Chair Sykes then called for input from the applicant, which was 
offered by Public Works Director, Eric Imes.  Chair Sykes asked if there were any others in 
favor of the application who wanted to speak.  Hearing none, he called for anyone in opposition 
to the application or anyone with questions or concerns to speak.  Hearing none, he closed the 
Public Hearing at 9:13 a.m. for the Board to deliberate. 
 



 

Board Minutes, February 8, 2023                                                                                    Page 2 of 5 
 

Commissioner Wenholz moved to adopt the Findings and approve the Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment, the Zoning Map Amendment and the Conditional Use Permit Application.  Chair 
Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Ms. Mabbott clarified the second reading would be February 22nd and that the dates were listed 
correctly in the Findings and draft Ordinance. 
 
Business Items 
Update from Blue Mountain Community College 
Mark Browning, President 
Mr. Browning said he had a big thank you for Morrow County because it was in the lead for dual 
credit enrollments for high school students.  There were 211 from Morrow County and Riverside 
High School was the leading contributor.  These numbers were up significantly year-to-year, and 
overall enrollment was up slightly from Winter Term 2022 to Winter Term 2023. 
 
Mr. Browning said the funds Morrow County disbursed from the unanticipated Amazon funds 
were used to save a program in Morrow County that was going to close.  The program was 
retooled and is working well in customized workforce training through the BMCC Morrow 
County Workforce Training Center in Boardman.  He also discussed efforts to close the distance 
barrier for some students.  Those efforts include improving online connectivity; and bringing 
training programs to people and locations.  He said they’ve been taking equipment simulators in 
enclosed trailers to various locations.  Mr. Browning introduced Chris Brown, Morrow County’s 
elected representative on the BMCC Board of Education.  A brief question and answer session 
with the Commissioners took place.   
 
Presentations from Commissioner Position 1 Candidates    
Gus Peterson, Roy Drago Jr., Mike McNamee 
The Board heard presentations from each of the candidates who applied for Commissioner 
Position 1.  They were then asked a series of questions by the Commissioners.  Chair Sykes 
explained the Board would make the selection on February 15th and the new Commissioner 
would attend his first meeting as Commissioner on February 22nd.   
 
Position Reclassification and New Employee Requests 
Lindsay Grogan, Human Resources Director 
Ms. Grogan said Department Directors and Elected Officials would present their own requests.  
The Board opted to hear the requests, take them under consideration for one week, and then 
decide what will be forwarded to the Budget Committee at the February 15th BOC Meeting. 
 
Sheriff John Bowles requested to reclassify one Dispatcher position to a Civil Deputy position.  
He also requested three new Patrol Deputies. 
 
According to the spreadsheet provide in the Agenda Packet by HR*, the budget impact for the 
reclassification:  $240 per month; and for the three new Patrol Deputies:  $459,585.  
 
*(Note:  the totals include salary and benefits, in most cases.)  
 



 

Board Minutes, February 8, 2023                                                                                    Page 3 of 5 
 

Kevin Ince, Finance Director, requested the Accounting Clerk be reclassified to Accounting 
Technician.  The spreadsheet from HR listed the budget impact as $346 per month. 
 
Greg Close, Parks General Manager, requested an additional Park Ranger.  The total cost for this 
position, according to the spreadsheet:  $95,363.  Mr. Close noted Park employees are grant 
funded. 
 
Sandi Pointer, Public Works Management Assistant, requested a Janitor position be added to 
replace those services currently provided by a contractor.  She said the County pays about 
$120,000 for the janitorial contract and a full-time employee with benefits would be below that.  
Total cost listed in the spreadsheet:  $81,736. 
 
Eric Imes, Public Works Director, requested a new Administrative Assistant.  Total cost listed in 
the spreadsheet:  $87,860. 
 
Corey Sweeney, Weed Coordinator, requested a part-time Assistant Pesticide Applicator.  Total 
cost listed in the spreadsheet:  $24,397-$26,237. 
 
Judge Glen Diehl requested to change the part-time Court Clerk I to full-time.  Total difference 
listed in the spreadsheet:  $38,470. 
 
Mike Gorman, Assessor/Tax Collector, requested to promote the Assessment & Tax Office Clerk 
to Assessment & Tax Office Specialist.  Total difference listed in the spreadsheet:  $2,816.   
 
Mr. Gorman also requested an additional Appraiser I.  Total listed in the spreadsheet:  $100,862-
$106,182.  
 
Robin Canaday, Public Health Director, requested to add a Health Equity Coordinator.  Total 
listed in spreadsheet:  $111,674-$121,647.  Ms. Canaday explained this will be funded by a grant 
from the Oregon Health Authority through June 30th.  OHA staff have discussed further grants 
for the next grant biennium but they haven’t come forward with specifics, she said.  Mr. Ince 
commented the County had not received the funds yet, nor any agreement or amendment from 
OHA, which meant there was no mechanism in place for reimbursement.   
 
Ben Tucker, Manager, Morrow County Transit/The Loop, requested to add a part-time Transit 
Driver II position.  Total listed in the spreadsheet:  $16,607. 
 
Spreadsheet Total for All Requests:  $899,936   
 
County Phone System Replacement Procurement 
Kevin Ince, Finance Director 
Jordan Standley, IT Director 
Mr. Ince explained these costs were budgeted and were within appropriations.  He said he and 
Mr. Standley followed intermediate procurement processes in obtaining bids and in making the 
recommendation to the Board.   
 



 

Board Minutes, February 8, 2023                                                                                    Page 4 of 5 
 

Mr. Standley said the system they recommended would be owned by the County and IT would 
support it.  The other bidders were for hosted systems and he said it was prudent to leverage the 
County’s IT Department to support the system.  Discussion. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to authorize the IT Department to proceed with procurement of 
the CrossTalk phone system, as recommended.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous 
approval. 
 
Ordinance No. ORD-2023-2:  Changing BOC Meetings to the First & Third Wednesdays 
Justin Nelson, County Counsel 
Mr. Nelson said the Ordinance changed regularly scheduled BOC Meetings from four per month 
to two; updated County Court references to Board of Commissioners; and allowed for locations 
to alternate to different cities and locations.   
 
Commissioner Wenholz said the intention going forward was to hold the meetings on the first 
Wednesday in Heppner and the third Wednesday in Irrigon but he understood the flexibility in 
the verbiage.  Unless circumstances warranted a change, this will be the normal rotation, he said. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve Ordinance No. ORD-2023-2:  An Ordinance Setting 
Meeting Schedule for the Morrow County Board of Commissioners.  Chair Sykes seconded.  
Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Wheatridge East Wind, Amended Strategic Investment Program Agreement (SIP), Increase 450 
MW to 500 MW 
Aymie Haslam and David Lawlor with NextEra Energy reviewed the requested changes.  They   
included the increase from 450 MW to 500; increase the number of towers yet to be built from 
150 to 200; and all 500 towers will now be in Morrow County instead of some being in Umatilla 
County.   
 
Mr. Gorman said this was the second amendment to the original SIP and the amendment will 
apply to the remaining years of the 15-year agreement and will not extend it. 
 
Mr. Nelson said the annual fiscal impact to the County will mean an increase of $400,000. 
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve the Amendment to the Amended and Restated Oregon 
Strategic Investment Program Agreement for East Wind Portion of Wheatridge Facilities.  Chair 
Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 
 
Request to Issue a Request for Proposals for Labor Attorney Services 
Lindsay Grogan, HR Director 
During the discussion, Chair Sykes noted there was no particular reason for issuing an RFP now, 
except that no contract or agreement can be found for the current labor attorney who has been 
providing those services since the 1980s.   
 
Commissioner Wenholz moved to approve the issuing of a Request for Proposals for 
Employment/Labor Attorney Services.  Chair Sykes seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 



 

Board Minutes, February 8, 2023                                                                                    Page 5 of 5 
 

Department Reports 
• The Probation & Parole Semi-Annual Report was presented by Gina Wilson, P&P 

Officer 
• The Tourism Semi-Annual Report was provided by Karie Walchli, Contracted Tourism 

Consultant 
• The Finance Department Quarterly Report was provided by Mr. Ince 
• The written Treasurer’s Monthly Report was reviewed, as submitted by Jaylene Papineau 
• The Planning Department Monthly Report was provided by Director Tamra Mabbott 

 
Correspondence 

• Flyers for three “Goal 9:  Economic Development” Townhall Meetings in Heppner, 
Lexington and Ione.  The meetings will be facilitated by Points Consulting in partnership 
with the Morrow County Planning Department 

 
Commissioner Reports 

• Chair Sykes said an Interim Administrator was hired and her first day will be February 
15th.  He said he hoped everyone would give Roberta Vanderwall a nice Morrow County 
welcome. 

 
Signing of Documents 
 
Adjourned:  12:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
  
























































































	Agenda
	Minutes, 1-25-23
	Minutes, 2-1-23
	Minutes, 2-8-23
	Public Hearing:  Solid Waste Rate Increase Request, Waste Connections; Order No. OR-2023-2
	Discuss Potential Broadband IGA
	Change in Deployment of Office/Microsoft 365
	Budget Committee Appointment Request
	Public Transit Advisory Committee Appointment Request
	Recommendations to Budget Committee for Employee Requests 
	Weed Dept. Quarterly Report

